1949

## Sher Khan v. Perry Zolezzi, Inc. : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF UTAH

SHER KHAN,

*Respondent,*

vs.

PERRY ZOLEZZI, INC., a corpora-  
tion,

*Appellant.*

Case No.  
7346

---

## Brief of Appellant

---

This is an appeal by Perry Zolezzi, Inc., a corporation, from two judgments entered December 30, 1948, on both counts of plaintiff's complaint as amended, and from the order of the trial court denying a motion for new trial of said defendant. The action was commenced against Perry Zolezzi, Inc., a corporation, and W. R. Perry. The defendant Perry was never served with summons, did not appear in said action except as a witness for plaintiff, and no judgment was taken against defendant W. R. Perry, the entire proceeding being against defendant Perry Zolezzi, Inc., a corporation, appellant herein.



## PLEADINGS

Plaintiff's original (R. 1-3) complaint alleged that on June 1, 1946, defendant W. R. Perry made, executed and delivered to plaintiff his promissory note in the sum of \$18,588.83, payable on or about six months after date at Eugene, Oregon, with interest at five per cent per annum from date, with reasonable attorneys fees in case suit or action be instituted to collect the note. A copy of the note was set forth in the complaint. It was further alleged that on or about July 1, 1946, defendant corporation, for valuable consideration, promised to pay the amount of said note to plaintiff, and that defendant corporation received property in the amount of the note from defendant W. R. Perry upon an undertaking to apply it pursuant to such promise, and to pay it to plaintiff. That the defendant corporation thereby assumed and agreed to pay the said note to plaintiff. That pursuant to such promise the defendant corporation on September 21, 1946, did pay to plaintiff the sum of \$3,588.83 to apply upon said note and reduced the balance of the note to the principal sum of \$15,000. Plaintiff had demanded from defendants, and each of them, said sum of \$15,000, plus interest, but that it had not been paid, and that the whole thereof is past due and owing, and that a reasonable sum to be adjudged as attorneys fees is the sum of \$1,500.00.

To this complaint defendant corporation interposed general and special demurrers, which were overruled. (R. 15, 16, 26).

Defendant corporation thereupon filed its answer, alleging that it had no information sufficient to enable it to answer the allegations as to the execution of said promissory note by defendant W. R. Perry, and therefore denied the same, admitted that defendant W. R. Perry, without authority of defendant corporation, caused the sum of \$3,588.83 of the funds of defendant corporation to be paid to plaintiff upon an obligation of said W. R. Perry to plaintiff, and denied the remaining allegations of said complaint. Defendant further answered and alleged that the purported obligation attempted to be set forth and alleged in plaintiff's complaint is barred by the provisions of Section 33-5-4, U.C.A. 1943. (Statute of Frauds). (R. 27, 28)

Plaintiff thereupon, by leave of court, filed an amendment to his complaint by adding a second cause of action, wherein as a second cause of action plaintiff alleged that on or about July 1, 1946, defendant Perry sold, transferred and delivered all of the assets and business of said W. R. Perry to defendant corporation for cash and credits in the sum of \$142,809.90, for the transfer to defendant Perry of \$50,000 of the capital stock of defendant corporation, which cash, credits and capital stock were paid by defendant corporation. That the defendant corporation became a purchaser of stock of goods, wares and merchandise in bulk from the said W. R. Perry otherwise than in the ordinary course of trade and in the regular and usual prosecution of seller's business, and that it did not demand from the seller at least five days previously thereto, and receive from the seller a statement

as provided for in Section 33-2-1, U.C.A. 1943, and did not notify at least five days previously thereto every creditor as shown by such verified statement of the proposed sale or transfer, and the time and condition of payment, and did not cause the purchase money for such property to be applied ratably to the payment of bona fide claims of creditors of said W. R. Perry. That by the provisions of Section 33-2-2, U.C.A. 1943, said sale to the defendant corporation was fraudulent and void. That defendant corporation assumed control over the assets of said W. R. Perry and sold and disposed of said assets without paying to the creditors their proportionate share of the full purchase price. That said plaintiff considered the said sale as being fraudulent and void and has attached the property of the defendant corporation. That at the time of said sale and transfer the said W. R. Perry was indebted to plaintiff as alleged in the first cause of action, and that the only payment thereafter was the payment by defendant corporation to plaintiff of the sum of \$3,588.83, leaving a balance of \$15,000, together with interest, which said sum, together with interest, was not the proportionate share of the purchase price to which plaintiff was entitled since the debts of defendant Perry, including the debt to plaintiff, amounted to the sum of \$142,809.90, and the defendant W. R. Perry transferred assets to defendant corporation having an agreed and reasonable value upon the date of transfer of \$192,809.90. That the assets transferred to defendant corporation by W. R. Perry have now been sold and disposed of by defendant corporation for a value in excess of the debts of W. R.

Perry, and that the proceeds realized therefrom are sufficient to satisfy the debt owing to plaintiff. That plaintiff has made demand upon defendants, but the same has not been paid, and that a reasonable attorneys fee is the sum of \$1500.00.

To plaintiff's complaint as amended defendant corporation interposed a general and special demurrer to each alleged cause of action separately, and also to the complaint as a whole, upon the ground that several causes of action are improperly united in said complaint as amended (R. 55-56).

Defendant corporation also interposed a motion to dismiss the second cause of action and for an order striking and expunging from said complaint as amended the alleged second cause of action, and the whole thereof, or in the alternative requiring and ordering plaintiff to elect between said alleged causes of action, as to which of the same he will stand upon as the basis for his remedy in said proceeding, upon the ground that the alleged causes of action and remedies sought are inconsistent in that the alleged first cause of action and remedies sought are inconsistent in that the alleged first cause of action by its terms seeks to enforce and secure the benefit for plaintiff of a purported contract, whereas under the alleged second cause of action plaintiff attempts to and seeks to repudiate, disavow and declare null and void as to plaintiff the said transaction as referred to in the first cause of action (R. 57).

Demurrer of defendant corporation was by the trial court overruled and defendant's motion was denied by the trial court on December 17, 1947 (R. 59).

Defendant corporation thereupon filed its answer to plaintiff's second cause of action, wherein it admitted upon information and belief that defendant W. R. Perry was, prior to the 29th day of July, 1946, indebted to plaintiff upon a certain promissory note approximately as set forth in plaintiff's first cause of action, and that said W. R. Perry thereafter paid to plaintiff the sum of \$3,588.83 from the funds of defendant corporation to apply thereon. Defendant corporation further admitted upon information and belief that W. R. Perry had not paid the balance of said obligation. Defendant corporation further admitted that the assets transferred to defendant corporation by defendant W. R. Perry had now been sold and disposed of by defendant corporation. The remaining allegations of plaintiff's second cause of action were denied.

As a first separate defense to plaintiff's second cause of action defendant corporation alleged that prior to the 29th day of July 1946, defendant W. R. Perry was indebted to certain secured and unsecured creditors in the sum of approximately \$164,000.00, including the obligation to plaintiff; that Perry was the owner of certain real property valued at approximately \$135,000.00, subject to a mortgage in the sum of approximately \$36,500.00, and certain supplies and accounts receivable valued at approximately the sum of \$30,000.00; that

defendant corporation agreed with defendant W. R. Perry that it would lend to said W. R. Perry the sum of \$50,000.00 and cause a mortgage in the sum of \$80,000.00 to be placed upon the real property of defendant Perry and assume and agree to pay said mortgage and accept conveyance of said real and personal property from W. R. Perry as full payment for \$50,000 of the common capital stock of defendant corporation, and issue to defendant W. R. Perry, or his order, 50,000 shares of its common capital stock; that it was a part of said agreement that said defendant W. R. Perry would, from said funds so to be made available to him by defendant and from the personal funds of said W. R. Perry, pay and discharge or cause to be paid and discharged by payment or compromise, or otherwise, all of said debts and obligations of said defendant W. R. Perry; that it was further a part of said agreement that said Perry was to pay and discharge all of said obligations of every name, nature, and description, and that in the event said Perry were to transfer to defendant corporation any property or assets in excess of the amount necessary to fully pay and discharge his subscription to capital stock in the sum of \$50,000, that the said defendant W. R. Perry should be given credit upon the books and records of defendant corporation for the amount of such excess, not to exceed \$10,000; that in compliance with said agreement said Perry transferred and conveyed said assets to defendant corporation, and said defendant corporation did and performed all things to be by it done and performed under its agreement with Perry, and that defendant corporation verily believed that there were no obligations of said



Perry outstanding and unpaid when it received from defendant Perry a conveyance of said assets, and that there was therefore no requirement on its part to comply with the provisions of Section 33-2-2, Utah Code Annotated 1943. Defendant corporation further alleged as a part of said first separate defense that plaintiff was, prior to the consummation of said agreement between defendant and Perry, or immediately thereafter, fully informed of said agreement between defendant and Perry and knew of the fact that defendant was to receive said assets free and clear of any demand or claims of creditors of said Perry, and of the fact that defendant was to commence its corporate existence without debts or obligations, save and excepting the secured obligation in the sum of \$80,000, and knew and understood that defendant would, pursuant to the terms of said agreement, cause shares of its capital stock to be issued to said Perry and would permit additional shares to the amount of \$50,000 to be subscribed for and fully paid by individuals other than said Perry upon the basis of such understanding and agreement with defendant Perry, and that notwithstanding such knowledge and information plaintiff failed to protest the same or to take other action to void said assignment and conveyance, but, on the contrary, consented thereto; that the plaintiff agreed with said Perry that plaintiff would look to Perry for payment of his said obligation from personal funds of Perry and would regard said obligation as a personal indebtedness of Perry; that defendant corporation accepted said conveyance and assignment of assets and

issued to Perry 50,000 shares of the capital stock of defendant corporation and accepted subscriptions for and payment of its capital stock from other persons, firms, and individuals in the sum of \$50,000 in the belief that Perry had fully paid and discharged, by payment, compromise, or otherwise, all of the debts and obligations of Perry; that by reason of said belief defendant corporation transacted business and incurred obligations in its own name from the date of its incorporation to the date of commencement of this action in the belief that the corporate defendant was obligated for only obligations created by itself. That by reason thereof plaintiff was guilty of laches in attempting at this time to question the validity of said sale and assignment by Perry to defendant corporation, and that plaintiff is estopped to question the validity thereof at this time.

Defendant further alleged as a part of said defense that plaintiff had accepted and received payment of the sum of \$3,588.83 from the funds of defendant corporation on account of said obligation of said Perry to plaintiff and as a credit upon said promissory note of said Perry.

It was further alleged as a part of said first separate defense that plaintiff has attached and levied upon the moneys and funds of defendant corporation as its funds, proceeds from the sale of a portion of said assets so transferred and conveyed to defendant corporation by Perry, and that plaintiff has thereby ratified and approved said sale and is estopped to deny or seek to void said sale by Perry to defendant corporation, or to seek to set aside said sale as fraudulent or void.



It was further alleged as a part of said further defense that plaintiff wholly failed to take prompt action to question the validity of said sale or to void the same, notwithstanding the fact that plaintiff knew of same and knew of the fact that defendant corporation would issue 50,000 shares of its capital stock, fully paid, to Perry on the basis of said sale, and knew that defendant corporation would sell and dispose of its capital stock to others upon the belief that all of the debts and obligations of Perry were paid and discharged, and that defendant corporation had received said assets in the belief that said assets were free and clear from all claims and demands of creditors of Perry, including plaintiff, and that by reason of all of the matters and things set forth in said first separate answer plaintiff is estopped at this time to seek to avoid said sale and conveyance by Perry to defendant corporation, and that plaintiff is guilty of such laches as to deny to him the right to seek the aid of equity in said premises.

As a second further answer to plaintiff's second cause of action defendant corporation alleged that plaintiff, by filing its first cause of action herein, and by attaching the funds of defendant corporation, elected to treat said conveyance and transfer of property from Perry to defendant corporation as a valid conveyance and sale, and has elected his remedy herein (R. 60-66).

To this answer of defendant corporation plaintiff interposed a general and special demurrer to each separate defense (R. 70-73).

Under date of March 25, 1948 the trial court sustained plaintiff's general demurrer to the first separate defense of defendant (R. 76).

Plaintiff thereupon filed his motion to strike from the answer of defendant to the plaintiff's second cause of action the second separate defense of defendant, upon the ground that the second separate defense does not state a defense to plaintiff's second cause of action. That the court has heretofore ruled that plaintiff could bring its suit upon both causes of action, the first alleging an assumption of liability by defendant, and the second alleging implied assumption of liability under Chapter 2, Title 33, U.C.A. 1943 (R. 77).

Under date of April 14, 1948 the trial court made and entered its order granting plaintiff's motion to strike the second defense of defendant (R. 83).

Thereafter, on April 20, 1948, the action of the trial court in striking the second affirmative defense to the second cause of action was rescinded, and the court sustained plaintiff's demurrer to the second separate defense to the second cause of action without leave to amend (R. 84).

## FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

2. That on or about the 10th day of July, 1946, the defendant, W. R. Perry, for a valuable consideration, made, executed and delivered to the plaintiff his certain promissory note in words and figures as follows, to-wit:

(Note set forth)

3. That on or about July 17, 1946, a promotion agreement was executed by W. R. Perry and Stephen Zolezzi for and on behalf of the defendant corporation. That the said W. R. Perry and Stephen Zolezzi subscribed for all of the capital stock of the defendant corporation, excepting one thousand (1000) of the one hundred thousand (100,000) shares of capital stock subscribed. That the one thousand (1000) shares that were not subscribed for by these two incorporators were subscribed for five hundred (500) shares for Leonard Elton and five hundred shares for L. W. Wrixon, both acting as the attorneys for the incorporators and for the corporation. That the other party to the said agreement was W. R. Perry. That by the terms of the said agreement, which is set out in Exhibit B, the promoters undertook, on behalf of the defendant corporation, to purchase said assets from W. R. Perry and as consideration for the said assets to assume and pay the debts owing by W. R. Perry and including the debt owed by W. R. Perry for the note hereinabove referred to, which was then held by this plaintiff, and to give to W. R. Perry Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000.00) in capital stock in Perry Zolezzi, Inc., the

corporate defendant. That by the said agreement the corporate defendant assumed and agreed to pay the said note to the plaintiff. That on or about July 27, 1946 and on or about August 1, 1946, the defendant corporation received property consisting of cash and real and personal property to the agreed value of One Hundred Ninety Two Thousand Eight Hundred Nine Dollars and Ninety Cents (\$194,809.90) from W. R. Perry, and as part of the consideration therefor promised to pay this note to the plaintiff, and received the said property upon the undertaking pursuant to such promise to apply the property received to the payment to this plaintiff of said note and other debts of W. R. Perry, amounting in all to the sum of One Hundred Forty-Two Thousand Eight Hundred Nine Dollars and Ninety Cents (\$142,809.90). That pursuant to such promise the corporate defendant, on or about August 1, 1946, made entries upon its own books to record the fact that it assumed this note of Eighteen Thousand Five Hundred Eighty-Eight Dollars and Eighty-Three Cents (\$18,588.83) owing to the plaintiff, and that it agreed to pay the amount of this indebtedness to the plaintiff. That the defendant corporation thereby assumed and agreed to pay the said note to the plaintiff.

4. That pursuant to said promise the defendant corporation, on September 21, 1946, did pay to the plaintiff the sum of Three Thousand Five Hundred Eighty-Eight Dollars and Eighty-Three Cents (\$3,588.83), to apply upon the said note and reduced the balance of said note to the principal sum of Fifteen Thousand Dollars (\$15,000.00). That the payment so made was made by

the defendant corporation, acting through its President and General Manager, W. R. Perry. That during all of the times in question, W. R. Perry was the President and General Manager of the defendant corporation and authorized to transact all of the business of the defendant corporation.

5. That although the plaintiff has made demands upon the defendants, and each of them, for the said sum of Fifteen Thousand dollars, plus interest as provided in the said note, neither of the defendants have paid the said amount, and the whole thereof is past due and owing.

6. That a reasonable sum to be adjudged as attorney's fees for the attorneys for the plaintiff, in accordance with the terms of the note herein sued upon, is the sum of Two Thousand Dollars (\$2,000.00).

From the foregoing Findings of Fact on the First Cause of Action, the court now makes and enters the following:

That the plaintiff is hereby entitled to a judgment against the defendant corporation for Fifteen Thousand Dollars (\$15,000.00), plus interest at the rate of five per cent per annum, as is provided in said note, from the date of delivery to December 27, 1948, in the amount of Eighteen Hundred Eighty-One Dollars and Forty One Cents (\$1,881.41), or the sum of Sixteen Thousand Eight Hundred Eighty-One Dollars and Forty-One Cents (\$16,881.41), plus attorney's fees in the amount of Two Thousand Dollars (\$2,000.00), together with plaintiff's costs herein incurred.

## SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

1. Adopts Findings of Fact numbers 1 and 2 as set out in the first cause of action.

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