1949

Sher Khan v. Perry Zolezzi, Inc. : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF UTAH

SHER KHAN,

Respondent,

vs.

PERRY ZOLEZZI, INC.,

Appellant.

CASE NO. 7346

Brief of Respondent

This action was commenced by the filing of a complaint on April 18, 1947, setting up a cause of action against the defendant, W. R. Perry, upon a note executed by him to the plaintiff, and also against the corporate defendant for the payment of this indebtedness of the defendant, W. R. Perry, upon the ground that the corporate defendant had assumed and agreed to pay this debt, and upon the further ground that the corporate defendant received property in the amount of this note from the defendant Perry, upon an undertaking to apply the property

pursuant to such promise and pay the property or money over to the plaintiff. Plaintiff also alleged that pursuant to such promise, the corporate defendant, on Sept. 21, 1946, did pay \$3,588.83 on this debt of \$18,588.83, leaving a balance due of \$15-000.00. A writ of attachment was issued and real estate and personal property of the defendant corporation was attached.

The defendant corporation entered a general denial and alleged that the sum of \$3,588.83 was paid by the defendant, W. R. Perry without authority of the defendant corporation (R. 27). A plea alleging that the cause of action was barred by the provisions of 33-5-4, U.C.A. 1943 was also filed (R. 28).

On Nov. 19, 1947, plaintiff filed an amendment to the complaint, adding a second cause of action. This second cause of action alleges a sale by the defendant, Perry, of all of his assets, otherwise than in the course of trade, and a failure of the purchaser to comply with the Bulk Sales Act—Sec. 33-2-2-U.S.C. 1943. (R 40). The delict of the purchaser was in failing to distribute the purchase price of the assets ratably to the creditors, in that all of the creditors of the individual defendant were paid in full, whereas this creditor, the plaintiff, was paid only \$3,588.83, upon a total obligation of \$18,588.83. This creditor was paid approximately 19% of the amount of its claim, whereas all other creditors were paid 100%. Plaintiff alleged that assets of an agreed and reason-

able value of \$192,809.90 were transferred by the defendant, Perry, to the corporate defendant, and at that time the liabilities of the defendant, Perry, including \$18,588.83, owing to the plaintiff, were \$142,809.90. The sale price then was more than enough to pay all creditors 100% of the amount of their claims.

The corporate defendant moved:

“to dismiss the second cause of action, or in the alternative, to require plaintiff to elect between said alleged causes of action as to which of the same he will stand upon as a basis for his remedy, upon the ground and for the reason that said alleged causes of action and the remedies sought are inconsistent in this, to-wit: That the alleged first cause of action, by its terms, seeks to enforce and secure the benefits for plaintiff of a purported contract, whereas under the alleged second cause of action said plaintiff seeks to repudiate, disallow and declare null and void as to plaintiff the said transaction referred to in the first cause of action.” (R. 57)

The fact that the corporate defendant stated in its motion that the plaintiff was seeking to have the sale declared null and void ‘as to the plaintiff,’ should itself have brought to the attention of the corporate defendant the fact that there was no inconsistency between the first and second causes of action, in that both causes of action acknowledge that the contract is valid as between buyer and seller, the second

cause of action only adding the entirely consistent allegation that as between the buyer and the seller's *creditors*, the contract, by force of statute, was null and void, and by force of statute could be disregarded. We shall discuss this feature later.

The action of the court in denying this motion to dismiss and in refusing to require the plaintiff to make the election of remedies is the basis of the corporate defendant's First Assignment of Error (App. Br. p. 26).

The corporate defendant then filed its answer to the second cause of action (R. 60). It pleaded as the second affirmative defense (R. 65):

"That the plaintiff has by filing its first cause of action herein and by attaching the funds of this defendant corporation, elected to treat said conveyance and transfer of property from defendant, W. R. Perry, to this defendant corporation as a valid conveyance and sale, and has elected his remedy herein."

We mention the second affirmative defense before the first affirmative defense because the court having sustained a demurrer to the second affirmative defense, the corporate defendant assigns that action of the court as error in its second specification of error (R. 26). The defendant here asserts that even though the court did not order an election of remedies, that the plaintiff by levying a writ of attachment elected to treat the conveyance and trans-

fer of property from the defendant, Perry, to the defendant corporation as a valid conveyance, and that plaintiff could not thereafter maintain the second cause of action. We shall discuss these two assignments of error together, since they are essentially the same, both dealing with that phase of the law known as "Election of Remedies."

The answer to the second cause of action also sets up a first affirmative defense, to-wit (R. 63):

"That this defendant therefore verily and in good faith, believed that there were no obligations of said defendant, W. R. Perry, outstanding and unpaid when it received from said defendant, W. R. Perry, a conveyance of said assets, and that there was no requirement on its part to comply with the provisions of Section 33-2-2 U.C.A. 1943."

It also pleaded (R. 64):

"That it believed that said defendant, W. R. Perry, had fully paid and discharged, by payment, compromise or otherwise, all of the debts and obligations of the defendant, W. R. Perry; that by reason of said belief this defendant corporation transacted business and incurred obligations in its own name from the date of its incorporation to the date of the commencement of this action, in the belief that it, this defendant, was obligated for obligations created only by itself. That by reason thereof, plaintiff is guilty of laches in attempting at this time to question the validity of said sale and assignment by defendant, W. R. Per-

ry, to this defendant, and plaintiff is estopped to question the validity thereof at this time.”

Defendant also pleaded as part of this affirmative defense (R. 64) as follows:

“Defendant is informed, verily believes and therefore alleges the fact to be, that the said plaintiff agreed with the said defendant, W. R. Perry, that plaintiff would look to said defendant, W. R. Perry, for payment of said obligation from his personal funds and would regard said obligation as a personal indebtedness of said defendant, W. R. Perry.”

It is notable that it is not pleaded that this agreement was with the corporate defendant, or that there was an agreement releasing the corporate defendant from this obligation, or that any agreement was made with the corporate defendant that the plaintiff would waive the provisions of the Bulk Sales Act, enacted for the protection of creditors.

The foregoing sets out the facts required as a preliminary to the argument to the corporate defendant's Assignments of Error Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 6. None of these Assignments would have arisen but for the addition of the Second Cause of Action; therefore, instead of arguing these Assignments now, we would prefer to discuss them when we get to the Second Cause of Action.

**REPLY TO APPELLANT'S ARGUMENT ON FOURTH ASSIGNMENT
OF ERROR (P. 43 Appellant's Brief)**

The Fourth Assignment of Error deals wholly with the First Cause of action. Defendant complains of the finding made that the defendant corporation assumed and agreed to pay this debt of the individual defendant and that it received property from the individual defendant upon an undertaking to apply it, pursuant to such promise, to the payment of the debt owing by the individual defendant. Defendant also complains of the finding of the subsidiary facts tending to prove these ultimate facts, these subsidiary facts being that the corporation made entries on the books showing that it had assumed this debt, and, secondly, that the corporation made a part payment of \$3,588.83. We shall first discuss the finding that the corporation assumed and agreed to pay this debt of the individual defendant, pointing out that this was done by the terms of Exhibit B, which was the pre-incorporation agreement executed by the two incorporators who owned 100% of the stock of the corporation. The writing, Exhibit B, meets the requirements of the Statute of Frauds. We shall also undertake to show that Exhibits C, D, E and H meet the requirements of the Statute of Frauds. If this court concludes that these writings meet the requirements of the Statute of Frauds, then it would seem to be unnecessary to proceed further in this brief to establish the fact that the promise made by the de-

fendant corporation to pay the debt of Sher Khan was made by the defendant corporation which "has received property of another upon an undertaking to apply it pursuant to such promise."

The bulk of this brief will be taken up by an exposition of the facts to demonstrate that the defendant corporation received property from the individual defendant upon an undertaking to apply that property to the payment of the debt of the individual defendant. Less discussion will be required to establish the subsidiary fact that a part payment of \$3,588.83 was made by the defendant corporation through its duly authorized officers and agents.

EXHIBIT B WAS THE PRE-INCORPORATION AGREEMENT WHICH BECAME BINDING UPON THE CORPORATION AND BY THE TERMS OF THAT AGREEMENT THE CORPORATION ASSUMED AND AGREED TO PAY THE DEBT OF PLAINTIFF

Exhibit B states that W. R. Perry and one Stephen Zolezzi were to form a corporation, the stock in which, after the conclusion of the transactions mentioned, were to be owned, in equal shares, by W. R. Perry and Stephen Zolezzi. The plan was that W. R. Perry was to acquire assets of the partnership of Neilsen and Perry (W. R. Perry was one partner) and that Perry would pay off the debts of the partnership and then contribute the assets acquired from the partnership, together with his own assets, to the corporation. We here set forth those preliminary provisions in Exhibit B which are necessary to an

understanding of that paragraph, subdivision (b) of Paragraph VIII, in which is found the promise to pay the debt of the defendant, Perry, to this plaintiff. These paragraphs are as follows:

“V.

The present liabilities which are owing by Neilson & Perry, a partnership, are represented by Mr. W. R. Perry to closely approximate the following:

Due Pacific National Life Assurance Company	\$36,500.00
secured by first mortgage on plant and equipment	
Principal	\$35,000.00
Accrued Interest	\$1,500.00
Federal withholding and payroll taxes and property taxes	6,000.00
Sundry creditors for merchandise, construction, services, etc.	60,500.00
Unpaid drafts and contingent commitments	61,000.00
	<hr/>
TOTAL	\$164,000.00”

“VI.

It is agreed that funds to meet the foregoing liabilities, set forth in item (5) hereof, will be provided as follows:

Proceeds of loan from First National Bank of Salt Lake City, to be secured by first mortgage on land, buildings and equipment	\$80,000.00
Cash to be provided by subscription of Mr. Zolezzi to stock of new corporation	50,000.00

Cash to be contributed by Mr. Perry directly to the First National Bank of Salt Lake City	10,000.00
Turkey drafts presently owned by Mr. W. R. Perry which will be converted into cash currently and contributed to First National Bank by Mr. Perry	18,000.00
Accounts Receivable and turkey inventory presently carried as partnership assets which are expected to be converted into cash to be delivered by Mr. Perry to First National Bank of Salt Lake City	10,000.00
TOTAL	\$168,000.00"

"VIII

Mr. Perry agrees that he will contribute to the new corporation, in exchange for cancellation of \$40,000.00 of the \$50,000.00 note given by him to the corporation and the issuance of 49,000 shares of the new corporation's \$1.00 per share par value stock, the following properties:

- (a) His equity in the real property and improvements, which equity will consist of said properties valued at \$135,000.00, subject to a first mortgage or deed of trust to secure the payment of \$80,000.00, liability for the payment of which obligation will be assumed by the new corporation. Value of real property equity \$55,000.00
- (b) Any cash remaining in the hands of the First National Bank of Salt Lake

City, which remains out of the sum of \$168,000.00 deposited under item (6) above, after the payment of other settlement of all of the liabilities of the partnership amounting to \$164,000.00, per item (5). Minimum net cash expected to be contributed 4,000.00

It is understood that the liability due Sher Khan, in the amount of \$23,588.83, may be settled temporarily by the payment of, say \$5,000.00 in cash and the execution by Mr. Perry of a note for the balance of \$18,588.83. In such event, the cash remaining in the hands of the First National Bank of Salt Lake City, to be transferred by Mr. Perry to the new corporation will be increased by \$18,588.83 and will be subject to the obligation incurred by Mr. Perry in the same amount of \$18,588.83.

- (c) Supplies and other prepayments presently recorded on the partnership books, having a book value in the approximate amount of \$15,000.00, together with certain Accounts Receivable, supplies and other assets presently owned by Mr. Perry in his own right closely approximating in value the amount of \$15,000.00. Value of assets to be contributed \$30,000.00

(d) TOTAL OF ITEMS (a), (b) and
(c) to be contributed by Mr. Perry

\$89,000.00

In consideration of the transfer to the new corporation of the properties represented by (a), (b) and (c) herein in this item (8) set forth, the new corporation will cancel \$40,000.00 of Mr. Perry's \$50,000.00 note and issue Mr. Perry 49,000 shares of its \$1.00 per share par value stock, as above indicated."

The assumption of this debt is found in the second paragraph of subdivision (b). It is true that the defendant corporation assumed payment of the debt only if it received property in the amount of \$18,588.83. As stated in the introduction of this discussion, it will be necessary to establish the fact that the defendant corporation received this sum of \$18,588.83 and after that fact is established we shall set forth our position as to the applicable law that makes this pre-incorporation agreement the agreement and writing of the corporation.

THE CORPORATION RECEIVED FROM THE INDIVIDUAL DEFENDANT, PERRY, MORE THAN WAS REQUIRED BY THE FIRST PARAGRAPH OF SUBDIVISION B. IT ACTUALLY RECEIVED \$18,599.83 MORE AS WAS CONTEMPLATED BY THE PROVISIONS OF THE SECOND PARAGRAPH OF SUBDIVISION (b) of PARAGRAPH VIII

In paragraph V the liabilities of the partnership were estimated as being \$164,000.00 and paragraph VI stated that \$168,000.00 was to be provided

from the sources stated in Paragraph VI to pay these debts of \$164,000.00. This \$4,000.00 overage was to be used by Perry, together with \$85,000.00 more of Perry's assets to repay the \$40,000.00 loan to the corporation and to pay for 49,000 shares of the capital stock of the corporation. This agreement was drawn upon the assumption that that amount of \$4,000.00 would be available if the figures used in paragraphs V and VI were correct. However, the agreement itself recognized that these figures would be subject to change. In the second paragraph of subdivision (b) of Paragraph VIII, which we have quoted above, it was understood that the liability due Sher Khan, in the amount of \$23,588.83 might be settled *temporarily*, by the payment of, say \$5,000.00 in cash and the execution by Mr. Perry of a note for the balance of \$18,588.83. As a matter of fact on the date of the execution of this agreement, namely, July 17, 1946, \$5,000.00 had already been paid to Sher Khan and the balance of the account was \$18,588.83 and a note had been given for that balance, and it was known that this note was not due until Dec. 1, 1946 and that this note would not be paid until the date it fell due. Though the estimated amount of the debts of \$164,000.00 as stated in paragraph V included the account of Sher Khan in the amount of \$23,588.83. (Exhibit F, First page of Accounts Payable), and funds were going to be provided for the payment of the entire account due to Sher Kahn, upon the date of the execution of this agreement, it was know that since this

debt to Sher Khan was not going to be paid immediately, there would be more than \$4,000.00 available to the new corporation. The second paragraph of VIII (b) took note of this eventuality, stating:

“In such event, the cash remaining in the hands of the First National Bank of Salt Lake City to be transferred by Mr. Perry to the new corporation will be increased by \$18,588.83, and will be subject to the obligation incurred by Mr. Perry in the same amount of 18,588.83.”

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